
From:Countryside Planning
Sent:Thu, 9 Nov 2023 12:17:19 +0000
To:Planning
Subject:Consultation response: Hampshire Countryside Service (Ref: 23/11145)

For the attention of: Kate Cattermole

Planning reference: 23/11145

Site location: 31 Barton Common Lane, Barton-On-Sea, New Milton

Proposals: Single-storey side and rear extension to create annex

Consultation response: General information, no comments specific to application.

Thank you for consulting Hampshire Countryside Service (HCS) as Highways Authority 
regarding Public Rights of Way (PROW) and Commons Registration Authority. We also 
manage Country Parks and Countryside Sites throughout Hampshire. Please accept this as 
our response to the above application, taking into account the material considerations 
relating to PROW, Commons and impacts to Hampshire County Council (HCC) Country 
Parks and Countryside Sites.

There are specific legislative requirements for the Highways Authority, Planning 
Authority, Developers and Landowners with respect to the PROW network. Where no 
changes are proposed to Public Rights of Way, the Planning Authority shall be aware of 
the following, and we request that the applicant is made aware of the following 
requirements through informatives where appropriate.

Informatives:

1. Where Public Rights of Way are close to application sites or are used for access to 
the development site, they must be shown on the submitted plans with details of 
how they will be accommodated within the proposals. Government guidance 
requires that applications should not be validated unless such information has 
been submitted.

2. Nothing connected with the development, or its future use, shall have an adverse 
effect on the Public Rights of Way, which must always remain available for safe 
public use at all times.

3. No vehicles (including builder’s and contractor’s), machinery, equipment, 
materials, spoil, scaffolding, or anything else associated with the works, use, or 
occupation of the development, shall be left on or near to a Public Right of Way 
as to cause obstruction, hindrance, or a hazard to the legitimate users. The public 
retain the right to use the PROW at all times.

4. The grant of planning permission does not entitle developers to obstruct a public 
right of way. The diversion or stopping up of footpaths, bridleways and restricted 
byways is a separate process, which must be carried out before the paths are 
affected by the development. It cannot be assumed that because planning 



permission has been granted that an Order under section 257 of the TCPA (1990) 
will invariably be made or confirmed. Development, in so far as it affects a 
PROW, must not be started and the PROW should be kept open for public use, 
unless or until the necessary order has come into effect.

5. All vehicles that would be legitimately accessing the site via a Public Right of 
Way should give way to public users, which could include horse-riders and 
cyclists, at all times. In cases with legitimate vehicular access a Construction 
Traffic Management Plan (CTMP) should be submitted to, and approved by, 
Hampshire Countryside Service as Highways Authority prior to any approval by 
the Planning Authority, and prior to commencement, to ensure the protection of 
public safety.

6. There must be no surface alterations to a Public Right of Way without the consent 
of Hampshire County Council as Highways Authority. Planning permission under 
the Town and County Planning Act (1990) does not provide this and separate 
consent is required. To carry out any such works without this permission would 
constitute an offence under Section 131 of the Highways Act (1980).

7. No works to the surface of the Public Right of Way shall be carried out without 
prior approval of the HCS Area Countryside Access Manager. Any damage 
caused to the surface of the Public Right of Way by construction traffic will be 
required to be restored to the satisfaction of the Area Countryside Access 
Manager on the completion of the build.

Kind regards,

Peter Miles
Countryside Service Planning Team

Countryside Service
Universal Services
Hampshire County Council
Three Minsters House
Winchester
SO23 8UL

countryside.planning@hants.gov.uk
www.hants.gov.uk/countryside
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